

Research and Information Service Briefing Paper

Paper 03/23

30 March 2023

Compiled by Trevor Gordon

Brexit Outcomes and Northern Ireland: A Reading List



<u>Picture</u> by Simon Walker / No. 10 Downing Street used under <u>Open Government License v3.0</u>

Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCTION

2. GOVERNMENTS

UNITED KINGDOM GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENT OF IRELAND

NORTHERN IRELAND EXECUTIVE

SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT

3. LEGISLATURES

WESTMINSTER PARLIAMENT

HOUSES OF THE OIREACHTAS/TITHE AN OIREACHTAS

NORTHERN IRELAND ASSEMBLY

SENEDD CYMRU / WELSH PARLIAMENT

SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT

4. EU INSTITUTIONS

EUROPEAN COUNCIL and COUNCIL OF THE EUROPEAN UNION EUROPEAN COMMISSION

5. COMMENTARY AND ANALYSIS

Agriland

Brexit Institute (Dublin City University)

Briefings for Britain

British Irish Chamber of Commerce

Centre for Brexit Policy

Centre for Cross Border Studies

Centre for European Reform

Centre for the Union

Committee on the Administration of Justice

Congressional Research Service

Conservative Home

Constitution Society

Consumer Council

Economic and Social Research Institute

Equality Commission for Northern Ireland

EU-UK Forum

Euractiv

The Federal Trust

Global Britain / Brexit-Watch.org

Institute for Government

Institute for International and European Affairs

Law Centre NI

Logistics UK (formerly Freight Transport Association)

London School of Economics and Political Science

Manufacturing UK

Northern Ireland Council for Voluntary Action

Northern Ireland Human Rights Commission

Northern Ireland Retail Consortium

Policy Exchange

Queen's University Belfast

Politics.co.uk

Retail NI

Slugger O'Toole

Spiked

The Conversation

The UK in a Changing Europe (ESRC)

6. MEDIA COVERAGE

1. INTRODUCTION

This reading list – 'Brexit Outcomes and Northern Ireland' – is intended to assist Members of the Legislative Assembly (MLAs) and others to contemplate developments following the UK's formal exit from the EU on 31 January 2020. For political, economic, geographic and social reasons, the impacts on Northern Ireland of UK withdrawal from the EU might be expected to differ in important ways from the impact of withdrawal on other parts of the UK. Most obviously, Northern Ireland is unique in that it is the only part of the UK which has a land border with an EU Member State.

The Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland, which is the part of the EU-UK withdrawal agreement, addresses the unique circumstances on the island of Ireland. The 'Windsor Framework: A New Way Forward', which was agreed in principle on 27 February 2023, amends the Protocol and includes a new procedure: the 'Stormont Brake'.

When compiling this reading list, an attempt has been made to select commentary, analysis and media coverage which has particular relevance to the specific context of Northern Ireland. The list also includes strategically important documents, such as the published positions of the UK and Irish governments and the EU institutions.

As the volume of published material on Brexit is vast and varied, this reading list does not purport to be a single comprehensive source covering all issues and opinions. However, the material has been drawn from a wide range of well-established and authoritative sources and RalSe intends to update the reading list as appropriate.

In addition to this reading list, RalSe maintains an <u>EU Exit Hub</u> with information on the Protocol, Windsor Framework, Common Frameworks and EU Exit Legislation. The hub also provides access to the research papers which we have produced thus far, a selection of blog articles, and previous iterations of our Brexit reading lists and topical digests. The EU Exit Hub also draws together useful resources produced by others, including their own hubs and blogs.

2. GOVERNMENTS

UNITED KINGDOM GOVERNMENT

Command Paper: The Windsor Framework: A new way forward 27 February 2023

Statutory Instrument: The Windsor Framework (Democratic Scrutiny) Regulations 2023 20

March 2023

Political Declaration by the European Commission and the Government of the United Kingdom 27 February 2023

THE PRIME MINISTER'S OFFICE

Policy paper: The Windsor Framework updated 10 March 2023

Speech: PM speech on the Windsor Framework: February 2023 27 February 2023

Policy paper: The Windsor Framework - sector explainer 27 February 2023

News release: Windsor Framework unveiled to fix problems of the Northern Ireland Protocol 27

February 2023

THE CABINET OFFICE

Collection: Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee updated 20 March 2023

Guidance: New rules for importing and exporting goods updated 13 March 2023

COMPETITION AND MARKETS AUTHORITY

News release: First major reports on UK Internal Market published 22 March 2023

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, FOOD AND RURAL AFFAIRS

Collection: Guidance on exporting live animals or animal products updated 16 February 2023

Collection: Guidance on importing live animals or animal products updated 16 February 2023

HM REVENUE & CUSTOMS

Guidance: Receive goods into and remove goods from an excise warehouse (Excise Notice 197) updated 1 March 2023

Guidance: Trading and moving goods in and out of Northern Ireland updated 28 February 2023

Collection: Customs, VAT and Excise UK transition legislation from 1 January 2021 updated 27

February 2023

Guidance: <u>Send a return of excise duty for registered consignees or certified consignees in Northern Ireland</u> 12 February 2023

Guidance: <u>Apply for approval to import duty-paid excise goods from EU countries into Northern</u>

Ireland updated 12 February 2023

Guidance: Claim for repayment of excise duty in Northern Ireland 12 February 2023

Guidance: Apply for approval as a certified trader in Northern Ireland 12 February 2023

Guidance: <u>Get authority to use another trader's deferment approval number in Northern Ireland</u>
12 February 2023

Guidance: <u>Apply for approval to be part of the Registered Consignee scheme in Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 10 February 2023

Policy paper: Changes to the excise duties (Northern Ireland) regulations 1 February 2023

HOME OFFICE

Guidance: <u>EU Settlement Scheme: caseworker guidance</u> updated 17 February 2023

NORTHERN IRELAND OFFICE

News release: <u>Bill to extend NI Executive formation period progresses through House of Commons</u> 22 February 2023

News release: <u>Secretary of State legislates to extend Executive formation period.</u> 9 February 2023

GOVERNMENT OF IRELAND

Irish Government News Service: Brexit webpage

News release: Minister McConalogue responds to the EU Commission's fisheries policy package updated 21 March 2023

News release: <u>Statement by Tánaiste and Minister for Foreign Affairs Micheál Martin on</u> agreement reached between EU and UK, 'the Windsor Framework' 27 February 2023

News release: <u>Statement by Minister of State for European Affairs Peter Burke on agreement reached between EU and UK on the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 27 February 2023</u>

News release: <u>Statement on phone call between Taoiseach and President of the European</u>

<u>Commission, Ursula von der Leyen updated 20 February 2023</u>

NORTHERN IRELAND EXECUTIVE

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, ENVIRONMENT AND RURAL AFFAIRS

EU Exit webpage

NORTHERN IRELAND STATISTICS AND RESEARCH AGENCY (NISRA)

Northern Ireland EU Exit Analysis webpage

SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT

Brexit webpage

News release: Call to re-join research funding programme 7 March 2023

News release: Scottish Parliament refuses consent for Retained EU Law Bill 23 February 2023

3. LEGISLATURES

WESTMINSTER PARLIAMENT

Brexit: research and analysis webpage

Government Bill: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 19 January 2023

WRITTEN QUESTIONS, ANSWERS AND STATEMENTS

Question for Northern Ireland Office <u>Livestock: Transport</u> 22 March 2022

Statement: Tenth Meeting of the Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee 20 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>EU Law: Northern Ireland</u> 14 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>EU Law: Northern Ireland</u> 14 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>EU Law: Northern Ireland</u> 14 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Internal Trade: Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 14 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Internal Trade: Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 14 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Internal Trade: Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 13 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Internal Trade: Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 13 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: lmports: Northern Ireland 13

March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>EU Law: Northern Ireland</u> 13 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>European Court of Justice</u>: <u>Northern Ireland</u> 13 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: Windsor Framework: Statutory Instruments 9 March 2023

Question for Department for Business and Trade: Windsor Framework 9 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>EU Law: Northern Ireland</u> 9 March 2023

Question for Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs: <u>Livestock: Northern Ireland</u> 8 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>Agricultural Products: Northern</u> Ireland 6 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Trade with EU</u> 6 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: Pets: Northern Ireland 6 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Internal Trade: Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 6 March 2023

Question for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office: <u>UK Internal Trade: Northern</u>
<u>Ireland</u> 6 March 2023

HOUSE OF COMMONS HANSARD

Debate: Windsor Framework: Economic Competitiveness 22 March 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland 22 March 2023

Debate: Investment in Northern Ireland 22 March 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland Businesses: Access to UK Market 22 March 2023

Debate: Windsor Framework: Economic Competitiveness 22 March 2023

Debate: Stormont Brake 22 March 2022

Debate: Northern Ireland (Executive Formation) Bill 22 March 2023

Written Statement: Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee: Tenth Meeting 20 March 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland Protocol 27 February 2023

Debate: North-west of Northern Ireland: Investment 8 February 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland Protocol 8 February 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland 8 February 2023

Debate: EU Funding: Northern Ireland 1 February 2023

HOUSE OF COMMONS - COMMITTEE INQUIRIES

Delegated Legislation Committee

Customs (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2022 14 March 2022

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Committee

MPs write to Minister on EU import checks 3 March 2022

European Scrutiny Committee

- Correspondence: The Rt Hon Chris Heaton-Harris MP 22 March 2023
- Windsor Framework: NI Secretary to be questioned by Committee 21 March 2023
- Letter from the Leader of the House to the Chair regarding the draft Stormont Brake S.I.
 21 March 2023
- The Windsor Framework and Prime Ministerial accountability: Fifteenth Report of Session 2022–23 14 March 2023
- Windsor Framework: Committee warn against 'fait accompli'
 14 March 2023
- <u>Fifteenth Report The Windsor Framework and Prime Ministerial accountability</u> 13 March
 2023
- Sunak called to give evidence on Windsor Agreement by European Scrutiny Committee 2
 March 2023

Liaison Committee

 <u>Liaison Committee sets out topics for forthcoming session with Prime Minister</u> 20 March 2023

Northern Ireland Affairs Committee

Correspondence from the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial
 Strategy, relating to the Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 2022 and implications for Northern Ireland 16 December 2022

Public Administration and Constitutional Affairs Committee

Common Frameworks

HOUSE OF COMMONS LIBRARY

Brexit and the EU webpage

<u>UK-EU relationship after Brexit</u> webpage

Research Briefing: Northern Ireland Protocol: The Windsor Framework 21 March 2023

In Focus: UK-EU relationship in financial services 17 March 2023

Research Briefing: Northern Ireland Protocol 28 February 2023

Constituency casework: The EU Entry/Exit system and EU travel authorisation system 17

January 2023

HOUSE OF LORDS Hansard

Debate: <u>UK-EU: Revised Passenger Requirements</u> 21 March 2023

Debate: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 8 March 2023

Debate: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 6 March 2023

Debate: Stormont Brake 2 March 2023

Debate: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 2 March 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland Protocol 28 February 2023

Debate: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 28 February 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland (Executive Formation and Organ and Tissue Donation) Bill 27

February 2023

Debate: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 23 February 2023

Debate: Northern Ireland Budget Bill 7 February 2023

Debate: Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Bill 6 February 2023

Debate: Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol: Scrutiny of EU Legislative Proposals (European

Affairs Committee Sub-Committee Report) 20 January 2023

HOUSE OF LORDS COMMITTEE INQUIRIES

Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland Sub-Committee

- Committee begins its examination of the Windsor Framework by hearing from key political and legal experts 22 March 2023
- New inquiry and call for evidence launched on the Windsor Framework 17 March 2023
- Medicines must not be forgotten as outcome of Protocol negotiations is awaited, urges
 Committee 24 February 2023

Secondary Legislation Scrutiny Committee

35th Report of Session 2022–23 23 March 2023

HOUSE OF LORDS LIBRARY

Our research on Brexit and the EU webpage

Research Briefing: Northern Ireland (Executive Formation and Organ and Tissue Donation) Bill: HL Bill 105 of 2022–23 24 February 2023

In Focus: <u>Scrutiny of EU legislation within the scope of the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland:</u>

<u>Debate on committee report</u> 10 January 2023

HOUSES OF THE OIREACHTAS/TITHE AN OIREACHTAS

Dáil Éireann - Debates

Good Friday Agreement 21 March 2023

Seanad Éireann - Debates

Good Friday Agreement and Windsor Framework: Motion 8 March 2023

EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement: Motion 14 December 2022

Committee on Budgetary Oversight

Opening statement by Irish Road Haulage Association to the Budgetary Oversight Committee on the Commission of Taxation Report 8 March 2023

Joint Committee on Agriculture and the Marine

Vote 30 - Agriculture, Food, and the Marine (Revised) 2 February 2022

Joint Committee on Enterprise, Trade and Employment

Impact of Brexit on Trade in Ireland: Discussion 9 March 2022

Joint Committee on Environment and Climate Action

Scrutiny of EU Legislative Proposals 22 February 2022

Joint Committee of European Union Affairs

Impact of Brexit on Ireland: Discussion 1 March 2023

<u>Joint Committee on European Union Affairs to discuss the impact of Brexit on Ireland's trade</u> and connectivity 28 February 2023

NORTHERN IRELAND ASSEMBLY

Brexit and Beyond newsletter

COMMITTEES

Committee for the Executive Office

Brexit Scrutiny webpage

Northern Ireland Assembly Research and Information Service (RalSe)

EU Exit Hub

- Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland webpage
- Common Frameworks webpage
- **EU Exit Legislation** webpage

Research Matters: blog Brexit

Topical Digest: The Windsor Framework 8 March 2023

SENEDD CYMRU / WELSH PARLIAMENT

Brexit webpage

Retained EU Law Bill risks giving too much power to Ministers and bypassing the Senedd 23 February 2023

RESEARCH SERVICE

Research article: Why does Wales need Border Control Posts? 1 March 2023

Research article: The UK Internal Market Act: How does it impact Welsh law? 20 February 2023

SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT

SCOTTISH PARLIAMENTARY INFORMATION CENTRE (SPICe)

Post-Brexit Hub

- Common Frameworks
- <u>Intergovernmental relations</u>
- Key legislation

SPICe Spotlight: EU & International Affairs

<u>Seeking effective operation of the Northern Ireland Protocol: The Windsor Framework</u> 1 March 2023

4. EU INSTITUTIONS

EUROPEAN COUNCIL and COUNCIL OF THE EUROPEAN UNION

News release: <u>EU-UK relations</u>: <u>Joint Committee adopts new Windsor Framework</u> <u>arrangements and Partnership Council looks to the future</u> 24 March 2023

<u>Decision No 1/2023 laying down arrangements relating to the Windsor Framework</u> **24 March 2023**

Meetings of the EU-UK Joint and Specialised Committees under the Withdrawal Agreement 24 March 2023

News release: New way forward on the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: Council greenlights main elements of the Windsor Framework 21 March 2023

EU-UK negotiations on the future relationship policy page

The EU-UK withdrawal agreement updated 22 March 2023

The Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland explained updated 22 March 2023

Timeline - The EU-UK withdrawal agreement updated 21 March 2023

EUROPEAN COMMISSION

Relations with the United Kingdom webpage

The EU-UK Withdrawal Agreement webpage

Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland webpage

Brexit: Impact and Consequences webpage

UK Coordination Group webpage

News release: <u>EU-UK relations</u>: <u>Joint Committee adopts new Windsor Framework</u> <u>arrangements and Partnership Council looks to the future</u> 24 March 2023

Proposal for a Council Decision on the position to be taken on behalf of the EU in the Joint Committee established by the EU-UK Withdrawal Agreement 27 February 2023

Factsheet: The Windsor Framework: a new way forward for the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 27 February 2023 Questions and Answers: political agreement in principle on the Windsor Framework, a new way forward for the Protocol on Ireland / Northern Ireland 27 February 2023

Statement by President von der Leyen at the joint press conference with UK Prime Minister

Sunak 27 February 2023

News release: A new way forward on the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: political agreement in principle on the Windsor Framework 27 February 2023

5. COMMENTARY AND ANALYSIS

Agriland

UK and EU to formally sign off on Windsor Framework 24 March 2023

EU Council 'greenlights' Windsor Framework elements 21 March 2023

What is the Windsor Framework? Michelle Martin, 27 February 2023

<u>UK and EU reportedly reach deal on Northern Ireland Protocol</u> Eva Osborne-Sherlock, 27 February 2023

EU agri committee urged to visit border region Stella Meehan, 23 February 2023

<u>UK Supreme Court finds Northern Ireland Protocol to be 'lawful'</u> Michelle Martin, 8 February 2023

MEP: NI Protocol discussions 'getting more positive by the day' Rubina Freiberg, 7 February 2023

Brexit Institute (Dublin City University)

Working Papers

The Windsor-Westminster Split-Screen Drama Ian Cooper, 23 March 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework – Does it 'cut the mustard'?</u> Feargal Cochrane, 28 February 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework: or The Law & Politics of Reconnecting the UK to Europe</u> Federico Fabbrini, 28 February 2023

<u>The Protocol Deal: A "Just Like That" Moment Seven Years in the Making</u> Colin Murray, 28 February 2023

<u>The UK Supreme Court Northern Ireland Protocol Judgment: A Return to Pre-EU Membership</u>

<u>Orthodoxy?</u> Oliver Garner, 13 February 2023

Briefings for Britain

Sympathy for the devil? GB and the DUP John Wilson Foster, 26 March 2023

The Stormont Brake con is critical for the imposition of direct EU rule on the UK Caroline Bell, 22 March 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework – a legal and democratic sting</u> Caroline Bell, 19 March 2023

The Windsor Framework – getting Brexit undone Caroline Bell, 16 March 2023

The Windsor Framework: A bad deal for Northern Ireland and an even worse deal for the UK Harry Western, 11 March 2023

What should the DUP do now? Graham Gudgin, 11 March 2023

A brief history of hypocrisy Catherine McBride, 4 March 2023

A hoo-ha about British bangers Catherine McBride, 24 February 2023

Sunak's Northern Ireland Sell out Harry Western, 9 February 2023

Are the NI Protocol talks going anywhere? Graham Gudgin, 9 February 2023

British Irish Chamber of Commerce

The Windsor Framework Summary Anna Taylor, 28 February 2023

<u>British Irish Chamber Welcomes Windsor Framework Breakthrough on Northern Ireland</u>

<u>Protocol Impasse</u> 27 February 2023

Protocol on Ireland/ Northern Ireland 14 February 2023

British Irish Chamber of Commerce Strongly Cautions Against UK Government's EU Retained

Law Bill 14 February 2023

Centre for Brexit Policy

Rishi Sunak's Brexit deal is more threadbare than reckless Tories will admit Sammy Wilson MP, 4 March 2023

<u>To preserve peace in Northern Ireland, the Protocol must be replaced</u> Sir Iain Duncan Smith MP, 18 February 2023

Centre for Cross Border Studies

CCBS Director gives evidence to the Northern Ireland Affairs Committee 22 March 2023

Centre for European Reform

<u>Does the Windsor deal herald warmer ties between Britain and the EU</u> Charles Grant, 1 March 2023

The Protocol deal is a win for Sunak – and the EU Charles Grant, 27 February 2023

Centre for the Union

The ERG Response to the Windsor Framework Christopher Howarth, 21 March 2023

The Stormont Brake Briefing Jamie Bryson, 21 March 2023

DUP will vote against Windsor Framework Sir Jeffrey Donaldson MP, 20 March 2023

<u>The Framework doesn't deal with some of the fundamental problems</u> Sir Jeffrey Donaldson MP, 16 March 2023

Compromise, discrimination, and arrogance John Hoey, 16 March 2023

A look at the Windsor Framework Sir Jeffrey Donaldson MP, 15 March 2023

TUV Response to the Windsor Framework Jim Allister KC MLA, 27 February 2023

Protocol bureaucracy costing £506m Gregory Campbell MP, 24 February 2023

PM must deal with Protocol's constitutional and democratic damage Sir Jeffrey Donaldson MP, 22 February 2023

Centre for Union sub-group to analyse legal text of any Protocol 'deal' Ethan Thoburn, 20 February 2023

<u>Protecting the peace and restoring the United Kingdom as a sovereign country</u> Sir John Redwood MP, 20 February 2023

<u>There can be no compromise on fundamental constitutional tests</u> Jamie Bryson, 19 February 2023

Getting it right must be the goal Sir Jeffrey Donaldson MP, 17 February 2023

Chairman's response to the Northern Ireland Office Ian Paisley MP, 17 February 2023

Deal Fever! What to look out for Christopher Howarth, 17 February 2023

Unionism must stand firm against a sell-out deal Jamie Bryson, 14 February 2023

<u>Supreme Court ruling must embolden the political campaign against the Protocol</u> Jim Allister KC MLA, 8 February 2023

A Response to the Supreme Court Judgement Sir Jeffrey Donaldson MP, 8 February 2023

<u>Centre for the Union - Supreme Court Judgement (Protocol) Briefing</u> Jamie Bryson, 8 February 2023

The Protocol: a strategy for Irish unity Jim Allister KC MLA, 7 February 2023

Now is not the time to compromise Jamie Bryson, 7 February 2023

Focus on substance rather than speculation Ian Paisley MP, 1 February 2023

An Open Letter to the Minister of State for Northern Ireland Ethan Thoburn, 1 February 2023

Committee on the Administration of Justice

Immigration webpage

Briefing Note – The Illegal Migration Bill, Impacts on the land border 16 March 2023

Congressional Research Service

Northern Ireland: The Peace Process, Ongoing Challenges, and U.S. Interests Kristin Archick, updated 9 March 2023

Conservative Home

<u>This week was a reminder (if one was needed) that the Conservatives are not the DUP</u> William Atkinson, 24 March 2023

Mark Francois: The 'practically useless' Stormont Brake is not the veto MPs were promised Mark Francois MP, 22 March 2023

<u>How much does the DUP's decision to vote against the Windsor Framework matter?</u> Henry Hill, 21 March 2023

The Windsor Framework. Conservatives and Unionists must not make the perfect the enemy of the good. John Baron MP, 20 March 2023

What can Sunak learn from the Brexit negotiations about realising 'Global Britain'? William Atkinson, 6 March 2023

No compromise is perfect, but Sunak's deal provides the tools for making further progress on Northern Ireland Harry Gillow, 3 March 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework is a masterclass in rebranding – not a decisive resolution to the problems of the Protocol</u> Hugh Bennett, 2 March 2023

In the Commons, Democratic Unionist MPs seemed split on the Windsor Framework Henry Hill, 1 March 2023

<u>Sunak's Protocol Deal – and a question for Conservative MPs. Should the perfect be the enemy</u> of the better? Paul Goodman, 27 February 2023

"It permanently removes any sense of a border in the Irish Sea." Sunak's Commons statement.
Full text, 27 February 2023

"It protects Northern Ireland's place in our Union. And it safeguards sovereignty for the people of Northern Ireland" – the Prime Minister 27 February 2023

<u>"We have now made a decisive breakthrough." Sunak's press conference statement.</u> Full text, 27 February 2023

Windsor Framework: White Paper link 27 February 2023

Windsor Framework: Political Declaration link 27 February 2023

Our survey. One in three Party activists support Sunak's approach to the Protocol – and two in five oppose it. Paul Goodman, 26 February 2023

"If the DUP don't consent to the deal it's simply not going to fly" - Francois 26 February 2023

How Number Ten and the Palace planned to drag the King into the politics of Northern Ireland 24 February 2023

<u>The Democratic Unionist Party, voice of Protestant desperation</u> Andrew Gimson, 23 February 2023

If Sunak is tempted to try and bulldoze the DUP, he should remember what happened to May Lee Reynolds, 22 February 2023

<u>Finding a solution for Northern Ireland, not just doing a Protocol deal, is possible</u> Roderick Crawford, 17 February 2023

What a Protocol deal that satisfies the DUP and ERG – without insisting on perfection – might look like Henry Hill, 9 February 2023

The Northern Ireland Protocol. Brussels is still unlikely to offer enough to restore the Assembly and save the Good Friday Agreement. Dr Graham Gudgin, 3 February 2023

Constitution Society

On orthodoxy and unanswered questions: the Allister ruling and why it matters Lisa Claire Whitten, 21 February 2023

Consumer Council

EU Exit: Advice for Northern Ireland

- Travellers
- Shopping
- Postal Services
- Businesses
- Home Energy
- Telecoms
- Water
- Personal Finances
- Energy

Economic and Social Research Institute

New ESRI research highlights high employment among migrants in Ireland and Northern Ireland, but also significant challenges to migrant integration in both jurisdictions 6 March 2023

Comparing migrant integration in Ireland and Northern Ireland 6 March 2023

Equality Commission for Northern Ireland

Protection of Equality and Human Rights After Brexit webpage

EU-UK Forum

The meaning of Rishi Sunak's Northern Ireland deal Philip Stephens, March 2023

It's all about the vibe shift Sam Lowe, February 2023

Sunak's Protocol deal shows the Brexit tide is turning Joël Reland, February 2023

Why a Northern Ireland solution is crucial for Sunak's hopes David Henig, February 2023

Euractiv

<u>UK backs NI deal reforms, but former PMs Johnson and Truss lead rebellion Benjamin Fox</u> updated 23 March 2023

UK PM faces Unionist opposition to new Northern Ireland deal Benjamin Fox, 20 March 2023

<u>Cleaning up after Johnson</u> Benjamin Fox and Eleonora Vasques, 2 March 2023

Windsor Framework unlikely to be applied for 'several months', warn UK officials Benjamin Fox, 1 March 2023

<u>Sunak tells Brussels – 'The grown ups are back in charge'</u> Benjamin Fox, 28 February 2023

Northern Ireland protocol deal heralds 'new chapter' in UK-EU ties Benjamin Fox, 27 February 2023

Hopes of deal on N. Ireland protocol as EU chief to meet UK PM 27 February 2023

The Federal Trust

Brexit and Northern Ireland: Who Got What They Wanted? John Stevens, 28 February 2023

Brexit – Bad for the UK, bad for Ireland Brendan Donnelly, 27 February 2023

Brexit and a Broken Britain John Stevens, 17 February 2023

Global Britain / Brexit-Watch.org

<u>The Windsor Framework guts fishermen's hopes of protocol respite</u> Brian Monteith, 22 March 2023

How the Stormont Brake con is critical for the imposition of direct EU rule on the UK Caroline Bell, 22 March 2023

Sunak introduces a Westminster Brake on UK divergence Brian Monteith, 21 March 2023

Sunak's bad deal for Northern Ireland is an even worse deal for the UK Harry Western, 21 March 2023

<u>Dynamic alignment in plain sight – the economic risk of the Windsor Framework</u> Caroline Bell, 21 March 2023

<u>Undoing Brexit by the back door – The Windsor Framework explained</u> Caroline Bell, 17 March 2023

Sunak's Duke of Windsor Agreement deserves to be exiled Ewen Stewart, 28 February 2023

The truth revealed about post Brexit trade Catherine McBride, 23 February 2023

<u>Update on Defending the Union of the UK, ending the Northern Ireland Protocol</u> Ben Habib, 16 February 2023

Institute for Government

Stormont Brake: The Windsor Framework. What is the Stormont Brake and why has it been agreed? Jess Sargeant and Sachin Savur, 10 March 2023

<u>Explainer: The Windsor Framework</u> Jess Sargeant, Sachin Savur and Joe Marshall, 28 February 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework improves the protocol – now the UK and EU need to make it work</u>

Jess Sargeant and Sachin Savur, 28 February 2023 2023

Institute for International and European Affairs

Brexit Briefings webpage

Law Centre NI

Information on Brexit webpage

Right To Remain - Toolkit Festival 24 February 2023

Logistics UK (formerly Freight Transport Association)

NI logistics businesses express support for Windsor Framework, but need detail 10 March 2023

Logistics UK's 'cautious optimism' regarding NI Protocol 28 February 2023

Logistics UK reacts to Northern Ireland Protocol announcement 27 February 2023

<u>Logistics UK discusses solutions for Northern Ireland Protocol with Prime Minister</u> 22 February 2023

<u>Logistics businesses need clarity on new post-Brexit regulations to keep the UK trading</u> 8 February 2023

<u>Logistics UK and members meet with Minister of State for Northern Ireland</u> 2 February 2023

Moving goods to or from Northern Ireland webpage

London School of Economics and Political Science

Will the EU Retained Law Bill lead to legal chaos? Giulia Gentile, 30 March 2023

Now the hard work begins: the aftermath of the 2022 Northern Ireland Assembly Election Clare Rice, 17 May 2022

Manufacturing UK

Brexit News webpage

NI Protocol webpage

Statement from NIBBWG on Windsor Agreement Connor Doherty, 27 February 2023

<u>Manufacturing NI statement on protocol discussions with Prime Minister</u> Connor Doherty, 22 February 2023

Northern Ireland Council for Voluntary Action

Brexit & Beyond website

Northern Ireland Human Rights Commission

Human rights after Brexit website

Table of EU Directives which underpin the Rights, Safeguards and Equality of Opportunity

Provisions included in the Chapter of the Belfast ('Good Friday') Agreement of the same name
and Implementing Domestic Legislation updated 22 February 2023

Northern Ireland Retail Consortium

Windsor framework tying you up in knots? What does it mean for non-food product conformity?

Adrian Simpson, 17 March 2023

Policy Exchange

<u>The Northern Ireland Protocol: The Clash of the two Treaties</u> Roderick Crawford, 1 February 2023

Queen's University Belfast

Brexit Filestore

Post-Brexit Governance NI

• The Protocol, EU and domestic law webpage

<u>QPOL – Queen's Policy Engagement</u>

Politics.co.uk

Brexit story ends with a whimper. But anti-Sunak ultras plant seeds of revival Josh Self, 23 March 2023

'It's impossible to say that this isn't an improvement on the current situation' says Peter Kyle on the Windsor Framework and Stormont Brake 22 March 2023

Boris Johnson voting against Brexit deal could prompt larger rebellion, Conservative MP says 22 March 2023

DUP to vote against 'Stormont brake' in Brexit showdown 20 March 2023

Brexit vote rebels compared to 'Japanese soldiers not believing the war is over' 17 March 2023

Splitting and under siege, the DUP faces a Brexit showdown like no other Josh Self, 2 March 2023

How Sunak hopes the 'Windsor Framework' will end Brexit division Josh Self, 28 February 2023

<u>Windsor Framework: Rishi Sunak hails 'real breakthrough' on Northern Ireland Protocol</u> 27 February 2023

EU chief to meet Rishi Sunak in signal of NI Protocol talks breakthrough 27 February 2023

Government entered NI Protocol negotiations with 'an attitude of defeat', says DUP MP 20 February 2023

Week-in-Review: Getting Brexit 'done' in NI will make or break Sunak's premiership Josh Self, 17 February 2023

Retail NI

Retail NI Response to EU-UK Agreement 2 March 2023

Slugger O'Toole

As the Westminster door closes, perhaps the DUP's opportunity has just opened? Mick Fealty, 23 March 2023

<u>Survey shows opposition to Windsor Framework dwarfed by positive support and a huge</u>
<u>swathe of "Don't Knows"</u> Mick Fealty, 22 March 2023

<u>DUP won't endorse the Windsor Protocol without "clarification, change and re-working..."</u> Mick Fealty, 20 March 2023

<u>DUP panel could do worse than seek defend NI's place in the UK from a point of view of economic strength...</u> Mick Fealty, 14 March 2023

<u>Donaldson's Dilemma: to lead or to follow?</u> Michael Hehir, 11 March 2023

Bertie Ahern: Close relations, Brexit misfiring and why a border poll won't happen even under a SF led government Mick Fealty, 7 March 2023

<u>DUP form eight-member party panel to examine Windsor Framework</u> David McCann, 6 March 2023

<u>Does anyone actually know what the Stormont Brake is? Some questions partially answered...</u>
6 March 2023

Despite the royal allusion "the 'Windsor Framework' is unlikely to become anyone's favourite child". Mick Fealty, 6 March 2023

<u>It's all over bar the shouting?</u> Frank Schnittger, 3 March 2023

<u>Is the DUP's NEVER, NEVER, NEVER, NEVER Unionism about to be de-commissioned?</u> Terry Wright, 3 March 2023

"There comes a time to seal the deal": a DUP member's take on the Windsor Framework... 3

March 2023

Brexit deal designed to 'unf*ck' the UK's economy not to just serve the vital needs of unionism... Mick Fealty, 2 March 2023

The claim that Sunak is overselling is oversold Brian Walker, 1 March 2023

The DUP are struggling to find reasons of principle for continuing their Assembly boycott Brian Walker, 28 February 2023

<u>DUP likely to be weighing the desirability of striking a deal before May's elections...</u> Mick Fealty, 24 February 2023

What if the proposed protocol reforms are rejected? Frank Schnittger, 23 February 2023

The DUP and its Decisions, Decisions ... Ian Clarke, 22 February 2023

It takes a spider to repair its own web Terry Wright, 21 February 2023

The real choices emerging: implement a Protocol deal without unionist consent; or accept a DUP veto on the UK resetting its relations with the EU Brian Walker, 18 February 2023

<u>Sunak's flying visit to Belfast smacks more of a reality check than harbinger of a deal...</u> Mick Fealty, 17 February 2023

Sixth opportunity to elect an Assembly Speaker fails as Dáithí watches from the public gallery Alan Meban, 14 February 2023

Is UK political leadership starting to get real about putting their country back on post Brexit rails? Mick Fealty, 13 February 2023

<u>Ireland's 50 years of EU membership...</u> Frank Schnittger, 13 February 2023

The Act of Disunion? Sarah Creighton, 11 February 2023

As the timelines extend, so do the possibilities for solving the Protocol riddle... Mick Fealty, 10 February 2023

Stop confusing Consent with Cross-Community Consent... Arnold Carton, 10 February 2023

<u>Supreme Court rules that the Northern Ireland Protocol is lawful...</u> Brian O'Neill, 8 February 2023

Spiked

Parliament still wants to bury Brexit Mick Hume, 23 March 2023

The Windsor Framework: a backdoor to Brexit betrayal Steven Barrett, 20 March 2023

We didn't vote for this zombie Brexit Mick Hume, 3 March 2023

Brexit is far from finished business Graham Gudgin, 2 March 2023

Sorry, but this does not restore British sovereignty Brendan O'Neill, 2 March 2023

Sunak is preparing to sell off our sovereignty Fraser Myers, 24 February 2023

The Conversation

New Brexit deal will be better for Northern Ireland's economy than the protocol, research suggests Geoffroy Duparc-Portier, 3 March 2023

Rishi Sunak's Brexit deal: how the Stormont brake could block new EU laws from Northern Ireland Billy Melo Araujo, 28 February 2023

Omagh police shooting: why attack comes at a difficult time in Northern Ireland Peter John McLoughlin, 24 February 2023

Northern Ireland protocol: why Tory backbenchers are rebelling over Rishi Sunak's revised

Brexit deal Simon Usherwood, 22 February 2023

The decision to ditch the UK's Department for International Trade is testament to the failure of Brexit 13 February 2023

The UK in a Changing Europe (ESRC)

<u>Five things you may not know about Parliament and Brexit</u> Lisa James and Professor Meg Russell, 29 March 2023

The Belfast/Good Friday Agreement at 25: Northern Ireland and the totality of relations 23 March 2023

Beyond the Windsor Framework: what's next for the UK's relations with its neighbours? Dr Cleo Davies and Professor Hussein Kassim, 22 March 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework: paving the way towards or away from the abyss?</u> Dr Clare Rice, 16 March 2023

Soft or hard Brexit? Depends on how you ask us Professor John Curtice, 10 March 2023

What do the public think about Brexit in 2023? Sophie Stowers, 10 March 2023

Playing it practical – Rishi Sunak's Brexit strategy Professor Anand Menon, 3 March 2023

The Windsor Framework: a new hope or a great betrayal? Alexander Horne, 2 March 2023

<u>The Windsor Framework: where have all the rebels gone?</u> Professor Tim Bale, 28 February 2023

The Windsor Framework: a quick evaluation Andrew McCormick, 28 February 2023

<u>How will a UK-EU deal land in Northern Ireland?</u> Professor David Phinnemore and Professor Katy Hayward, 24 February 2023

<u>Medicines and the Northern Ireland Protocol: time is running out for a cure</u> Mark Samuels, 21 February 2023

<u>Languishing in limbo: whither democracy in Northern Ireland?</u> Professor Katy Hayward, 15 February 2023

Brexit Witness Archive Ireland/Northern Ireland Project (BWIP) webpage

6. MEDIA COVERAGE

News Letter 29 March 2023

Rather than asking for clarity about the Windsor deal on Northern Ireland, the DUP should provide it Samuel Morrison

Belfast Live 29 March 2023

ESF funding loss 'due to Brexit fallout and Stormont impasse' as charities hope for support Connor Lynch

Belfast Live 28 March 2023

Orange Order will not support Stormont return unless Windsor Framework changed Maurice Fitzmaurice

Irish News 28 March 2023

MP warns 'not all' ESF recipients will be covered in UK replacement funding for community groups and charities Paul Ainsworth

Irish News 26 March 2023

Only route for north back into the EU is via united Ireland, says SDLP's Matthew O'Toole John Manley

Belfast Live 25 March 2023

Windsor Framework 'worse than the Protocol', TUV conference told Cillian Sherlock

BBC News 24 March 2023

<u>UK and EU formally adopt new Brexit Windsor Framework deal</u> Jayne McCormack & John Campbell

Belfast Telegraph 23 March 2023

<u>The message is clear - Tories want to move on even if it means leaving DUP behind</u> Suzanne Breen

Irish News 23 March 2023

<u>Varadkar to attend EU leaders meeting where Windsor Framework will be discussed</u> Gráinne Ní Aodha

Belfast Telegraph 23 March 2023

Doug Beattie: DUP boycott has failed as MPs give backing to Stormont Brake Liam Tunney

Irish News 22 March 2023

Mary Lou McDonald says Boris Johnson government was 'not upfront' with unionism Gráinne Ní Aodha

Irish News 22 March 2023

Survey shows support for Windsor Framework three times greater than opposition John Manley

Belfast Telegraph 22 March 2023

Jim Allister hits out at 'typical DUP dithering' over Windsor Framework Suzanne Breen

Belfast Telegraph 22 March 2023

Johnson and Truss to vote against Sunak's Brexit deal Dominic McGrath

Belfast Telegraph 21 March 2023

Government stands by the Windsor pact as DUP vow to vote against it Liam Tunney and Niamh Campbell

BBC News 20 March 2023

Brexit: DUP will vote against Windsor Framework plans

Belfast Telegraph 20 March 2023

New Stormont Brake details to be revealed as Ian Paisley confirms he will vote against it Niamh Campbell

BBC News 20 March 2023

Brexit: New Stormont brake details due to be published

The Guardian 19 March 2023

Several Tory MPs may join DUP in voting against Brexit 'Stormont brake' Aubrey Allegretti

News Letter 19 March 2023

<u>DUP poised to reject government's Stormont Brake deal with European Union , report suggests</u>

Mark Rainey

News Letter 19 March 2023

Windsor Framework offers 'predictability and stability' for businesses in Northern Ireland, says

Germany's ambassador to the UK Miguel Berger Roderick McMurray

News Letter 19 March 2023

Windsor Framework being 'grossly misrepresented' by government, claim Mark Rainey

Belfast Telegraph 17 March 2023

'I'm a big supporter of Windsor Framework' Joe Biden tells Taoiseach Liam Tunney

BBC News 17 March 2023

Hillary Clinton 'hopeful' over Northern Ireland power-sharing

Reuters 16 March 2023

UK PM Sunak's new Brexit deal faces parliamentary test next week Andrew Macaskill

Irish News 16 March 2023

Windsor Framework is 'most practical way' to deal with Brexit, says Tony Blair Claudia Savage

RTÉ News 16 March 2023

MPs to debate motion to approve measures needed to implement Stormont brake

Belfast Telegraph 16 March 2023

MPs to debate Stormont Brake legislation in House of Commons Brett Campbell

BBC News 15 March 2023

European Social Fund: 'Vulnerable people in deep water' over cuts Robbie Meredith

RTÉ News 14 March 2023

Windsor Framework does not address 'fundamental problems' - DUP leader

BBC News 11 March 2023

Windsor Framework: NI will not follow EU on arsenic levels in baby food John Campbell

BBC News 11 March 2023

Windsor Framework: Business leaders support new deal Clodagh Rice

Belfast Telegraph 10 March 2023

Government will not seek to recoup £200k of public money spent on protocol legal cases

Andrew Madden

The Guardian 6 March 2023

<u>DUP unlikely to reach decision on revised Northern Ireland deal until April</u> Lisa O'Carroll and Aubrey Allegretti

BBC News 5 March 2023

Windsor Framework: Stormont brake to be focus of Heaton-Harris talks

The Guardian 5 March 2023

New Brexit trading rules could take more than two years to bed in fully Lisa O'Carroll

BBC News 3 March 2023

Windsor Framework: Unionists to get 'legal reassurances'

News Letter 3 March 2023

Windsor Framework and Northern Ireland Protocol: DUP and TUV urge loyalists not to follow Sinn Fein justification for violence after LCC chairman David Campbell speaks of 'credible threat' Philip Bradfield

BBC News 2 March 2023

Mencap NI jobs and services 'at risk' over EU funding cuts

BBC News 2 March 2023

Boris Johnson says he will find it hard to vote for Rishi Sunak's Brexit deal Sam Francis

BBC News 1 March 2023

Brexit: What is the Stormont brake? Jayne McCormack

BBC News 28 February 2023

Brexit: What does Windsor Framework mean for business? John Campbell

Belfast Telegraph 27 February 2023

UVF disorder threat: Change attitude to loyalist gangs, says Alliance MLA Mark Bain

Politico 27 February 2023

<u>DUP 'won't be pushed' into accepting UK-EU deal on Northern Ireland — but sees an attractive veto</u> Shawn Pogatchnik

News Letter 27 February 2023

The deal over the Northern Ireland Protocol is unlikely to be one that unionists will like Ben Lowry

BBC News 27 February 2023

NI Protocol: Questions to ask about a possible new deal John Campbell

Belfast Telegraph 27 February 2023

PM on brink of ending protocol headache... but still must sway DUP Mark Bain

Belfast Live 26 February 2023

Protocol: No10 raises prospect of EU and UK breakthrough as PM holds final talks Patrick Daly

Belfast Telegraph 25 February 2023

Sunak to press on with Brexit deal talks as EU leader's visit cancelled Patrick Daly

Belfast Telegraph 24 February 2023

Health service and economy 'more important to voters than protocol' – survey Steven Alexander

BBC News 24 February 2023

NI Protocol: Will Rishi Sunak's deal pass DUP checkpoint? Enda McClafferty

Belfast Telegraph 22 February 2023

PM Rishi Sunak ready to return to NI as a deal over the protocol progresses Alison Morris

Belfast Telegraph 22 February 2023

DUP says 'only three or four' of its NI Protocol tests met Kurtis Reid

Belfast Telegraph 21 February 2023

Fortum & Mason chief says it's 'almost impossible' for food retailers to trade without Brexit deal over NI Emma Montgomery

The Guardian 21 February 2023

<u>Sunak 'relaxed' about DUP and Tory backlash over Northern Ireland deal</u> Pippa Crerar, Lisa O'Carroll, Jessica Elgot and Aletha Adu

BBC News 20 February 2023

Brexit: UK and Ireland discuss travel permit changes John Campbell

News Letter 20 February 2023

Northern Ireland Protocol: 'Intensive work' set to continue after 'productive' talks between James Cleverly, Chris Heaton-Harris and Maros Sefcovic Sam Blewett

Belfast Telegraph 20 February 2023

DUP's Sammy Wilson says he doesn't believe Protocol deal happen this week Kurtis Reid

The Guardian 20 February 2023

<u>Suella Braverman urges Sunak not to ditch Northern Ireland protocol bill</u> Jessica Elgot, Pippa Crerar and Kiran Stacey

Belfast Live 20 February 2023

Northern Ireland Protocol: Rishi Sunak presses to unveil deal despite backlash from Tories and DUP Sophie Wingate

The Irish Times 20 February 2023

'Huge gaps' remain between EU and UK on protocol deal, DUP MP says Freya McClements, Naomi O'Leary and Cormac McQuinn

Belfast Telegraph 19 February 2023

Johnson facing a backlash after 'bid to wreck protocol deal'

BBC News 19 February 2023

NI Protocol: Could Stormont veto be key for DUP to support deal? Enda McClafferty

Guardian 19 February 2023

Northern Ireland post-Brexit deal unlikely this week, says DUP spokesperson Peter Walker

The Telegraph 19 February 2023

Rishi Sunak forced to 'pause' Protocol deal amid backlash from senior Tories and DUP Charles Hymas & Dominic Penna

News Letter 18 February 2023

Northern Ireland Protocol deal could make things worse by leading to fewer checks but more documentation Peter Summerton

Belfast Telegraph 16 February 2023

DUP could win battle but lose the war Suzanne Breen

Belfast Telegraph 15 February 2023

New NI Protocol deal will meet all the DUP's seven red lines: reports Liam Tunney

Belfast Telegraph 15 February 2023

DUP: We'll decide if any NI Protocol deal meets seven tests Liam Tunney

BBC News 14 February 2023

Dáithí's law: Assembly to meet for recall over organ donation

BBC News 11 February 2023

Brexit: Northern Ireland Protocol talks at their end stages, sources say Jessica Parker

BBC News 8 February 2023

Northern Ireland Protocol is lawful, Supreme Court rules John Campbell & Jessica Parker

Belfast Telegraph 8 February 2023

Sir Reg Empey: NI heading for joint authority if Stormont can't be restored Suzanne Breen

BBC News 7 February 2023

NI Protocol: Talks focussed on 'incremental work', says Šefčovič Jessica Parker

Belfast Telegraph 6 February 2023

<u>Protocol: Breakthrough in trade talks as EU to agree to 'green and red lanes' at NI ports</u> Niamh Campbell